
 

 

Agenda 

 
 

Committee Administrator:     Democratic Services Officer  (01609 767015) 
 

Monday, 28 September 2020 
Dear Councillor 
 
Notice of Meeting 
 
Meeting Cabinet 

 
Date Tuesday, 6 October 2020 

 
Time 9.30 am 

 
Venue Council Chamber, Civic Centre, Stone Cross, Rotary Way, 

Northallerton, DL6 2UU.  This meeting is also available to join via 
Teams.  Please see joining instructions below. 

Yours sincerely 
 

J. Ives. 
 
Dr Justin Ives 
Chief Executive 
 
To: Councillors Councillors 

M S Robson (Chairman) 
P R Wilkinson (Vice-Chairman) 
Mrs B S Fortune 
Mrs I Sanderson 
 

M G Taylor 
S Watson 
D A Webster 
 

Other Members of the Council for information  
 
Note 
 
Press and public are welcome to attend meetings of Council. Due to current social distancing restrictions, 
measures have been implemented which limit the number of attendees able to be physically present in the 
meeting at any one time. Temporary arrangements are in place for members of the public to register in 
advance if they wish to attend a meeting. If you wish to attend the meeting, you are requested to register 
your intent no later than 24 hours before the meeting takes place. Spaces available are allocated on a first 
come first served basis. If you have not registered in advance access to the meeting cannot be guaranteed. 
Upon arrival members of the press and public will be asked to sign at reception and further instructions will 
be provided. Please note that the meeting is also available to be viewed virtually via Teams without the 
need to physically attend the meeting. Please click on the link on the website or dial 020 3855 5195 

followed by the Conference ID: 678 784 231#   Please contact Louise Hancock, Democratic Services 
Officer, Tel: 01609 767015 or email committeeservices@hambleton.gov.uk to register your 
attendance. 

Public Document Pack

mailto:committeeservices@hambleton.gov.uk


Agenda 
 
  Page No 

 
1.  Minutes 

 
 

 To confirm the decisions of the meeting held on 8 September 2020 
(CA.70 - CA.78), previously circulated. 
 

 

2.  Apologies for Absence  
 

 

Resources Management   
 

3.  Affordable Housing Funding 
 

1 - 6 

 This report seeks consideration of various issues regarding affordable 
housing funding from the following sources: Commuted Sums 
(Affordable Housing) and Community Housing Fund. 
 
In accepting these recommendations, Cabinet will agree the expenditure 
proposals relating to commuted sums (affordable housing) as shown at 
1.2.5 of the report; reduce the funds committed for the Housing 
Development Officer post by £5,504 to cover the full costs of the bids for 
commuted sums (affordable housing) funding; and agree the £75,000 
expenditure relating to the Community Housing Fund as shown at 1.3.2 
of the report. 
 

 

 Relevant Ward(s): All Wards 
 

 

Policy Implementation 
   

4.  Public Open Space, Sport and Recreation Action Plans 
 

7 - 10 

 This report seeks approval of the refreshed Public Open Space, Sport 
and Recreation Action Plans for the Rudby Parish. 
 
In accepting the recommendations, the refreshed Public Open Space, 
Sport and Recreation Action Plan for the Rudby Parish attached at 
Annex B of the report will be approved. 
 

 

 Relevant Ward(s): Hutton Rudby Ward 
 

 

 



Hambleton District Council 
 
Report To: Cabinet 
 
Date: 6 October 2020  
 
Subject: Affordable Housing Funding 
 
Portfolio Holder: Planning  
 Councillor D A Webster  
  
Wards Affected: All Wards 
 

 
 
1.0 Purpose and Background 
 
1.1 This report covers affordable housing funding from the following sources: 

 Commuted Sums (Affordable Housing) 

 Community Housing Fund 
 
1.2 Commuted Sums (Affordable Housing) 

 
1.2.1 Hambleton District Council receives commuted sum payments from housing 

developers in lieu of on-site affordable housing provision in respect of planning 
permission for new housing schemes where this is considered appropriate. This 
report does not cover commuted sums received for other purposes, e.g. public open 
spaces. 

 
1.2.2 The Council currently holds a total of £589,246. The legal agreements (section 106) 

determine the area where the funds must be spent and the deadline (usually 5 
years). All the funds must be spent on affordable housing. 

 
1.2.3 On 10 March 2020 the Council’s Cabinet agreed to utilise commuted sum reserves 

(ring-fenced for affordable housing) to pay for the Council’s annual contribution to 
the Rural Housing Enabler Programme from 2020/21. This is estimated to be a total 
of £37,500 for the next 5 years (April 2020 to March 2025). 

 
1.2.4 On 2 June 2020 a Chief Executive delegated decision agreed that £80,000 of the 

commuted sum District-wide funds is used to fund the Council’s Housing 
Development Officer post until 31 March 2022. Furthermore, it was agreed that the 
remaining funds should be spent on initiatives relating to the following: 

  Providing grants to Registered Providers to increase delivery of new 
affordable housing, e.g. where funding from Homes England is insufficient to 
deliver a viable scheme. 

 Providing funding towards market housing schemes to increase/maintain 
affordable housing provision, e.g. where financial viability has been proven 
that the affordable housing requirement cannot be met.   

 Bringing empty properties (e.g. long-term empty homes; space over shops) 
into use as affordable housing. This can link in with the Council’s Future High 
Street Funding bid. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 Providing grant funding for adaptations to existing affordable housing where 
alternative funding streams, e.g. Disabled Facilities Grants, are insufficient to 
cover the cost of such essential works. This is subject to only using funding 
which allows for the improvement of affordable housing. Hence this does not 
apply to all section 106 agreements.     

  
1.2.5 In June 2020 the Council’s housing association development partners were invited 

to submit funding bids in line with the above criteria by 1 September 2020. These 
bids have now been received and are summarised below. 

  

Scheme name Organisation Proposal Amount Relevant Area 

Ingleby 
Arncliffe 

Beyond 
Housing 

New-build 18 
homes 
(including 11 
affordable) 

£219,900 Stokesley 

Leeming Bar Broadacres HA Purchase of 
existing house 
and adaptation 
for disabled 
person 
(affordable 
rent)  

£30,000 Bedale 

Sutton-on-the-
Forest 

Horton Housing 8 new gypsy 
and traveller 
permanent 
pitches 
(affordable 
rent) 

£91,350 Easingwold 

Easingwold 
P&R 

Broadacres HA Purchase and 
repair of 4 
existing homes 
for affordable 
rent 

£100,000 Easingwold 

Northallerton 
Homeless 
Supported 
Move-on  

Broadacres HA Acquisition of 
3 new flats 
(conversion 
scheme) for 
affordable 
rent; ring-
fenced for 
homeless 
people in the 
District 

£36,000 District-wide 

    
1.2.6 The above bids will deliver 27 new affordable homes in the District and will meet a 

range of different needs. Grant funding for the Ingleby Arncliffe scheme would be 
dependent on planning permission being obtained. All the schemes should be 
completed no later than 31 March 2022. None of the schemes can be delivered 
without the funding bid for. All the above bids are recommended for approval. 

  

Page 2



1.2.7  The Northallerton homeless move-on scheme bid of £36,000 forms a capital 
contribution to a bid to Government under the Next Steps Accommodation 
Programme which aims to provide additional accommodation for rough sleepers 
and those at risk of rough sleeping. The Council has submitted a bid in partnership 
with Broadacres Housing Association for capital and revenue funding (needed to 
provide staff support to residents). It is hoped that the outcome of the bid will be 
known by the Cabinet meeting date.  

 
1.3 Community Housing Fund 

 
1.3.1 This funding was provided by the Government in 2018 to help deliver new 

affordable housing through community-led initiatives.  The Council currently holds a 
total of £95,000. 

 
1.3.2 The Council has received a bid for £75,000 from the Matthew Robinson Trust to 

enable the upgrade of two existing almshouses and school master’s house; and the 
development of one new-build home. They are working with Broadacres Housing 
Association who would manage the project and the completed homes (all of which 
would be let on affordable rent terms). 

 
1.3.3 The Trust is in the process of applying for planning permission and hope to 

complete the project in 2021. Grant funding would be subject to planning permission 
being obtained. 

 
1.3.4 The bid meets the criteria in the Council’s Community Housing Fund Grant Policy 

and is supported by the Community Housing Fund Project Group (who met on 25 
August 2020 to consider the bid), however as the bid is for more than £15,000 
approval is needed from Cabinet.    

 
2.0 Link to Council Priorities 
 
2.1 The commuted sums expenditure contributes to the Council’s priority of ‘Providing a 

special place to live’ by enabling the delivery of affordable housing. 
 
3.0 Risk Assessment  
 
3.1 The key risk is in not approving the recommendation(s) as shown below:- 
  

Risk Implication Gross 
Prob 

Gross 
Imp 

Gross 
Total 

Preventative 
action 

Net 
Prob 

Net 
Imp 

Net 
Total 

Commuted sum 
funds remain 
unspent after the 
deadline specified 
in section 106 
agreements  

The funds will have 
to be returned to the 
developer, therefore 
could not be used 
for affordable 
housing 

 
4 

 
3 

 
12 

Approve the 
recommendations to 
enable expenditure 
to be made before 
the deadlines 

 
5 

 
2 

 
10 

Prob = Probability, Imp = Impact, Score range is Low = 1, High = 5 
  
 Overall the risk of agreeing with the recommendations outweighs the risks of not 

agreeing them and is considered acceptable. 
 

Page 3



4.0 Financial Implications 
 
4.1 The table below shows the financial position in respect of the commuted sums. 
  

Area Available Committed Funds bid for Balance 

Stokesley £143,146 £0 £219,900 -£76,754 

Bedale £24,000 £0 £30,000 -£6,000 

Easingwold £186,255 £0 £191,350 -£5,095 

Total sub-area £353,401 £0 £441,250 -£87,849 

     

District-wide £235,845 £117,500 £36,000 £82,345 

Total £589,246 £117,500 £477,250 -£5,504 

 
4.2 It is proposed that the £87,849 deficit for the sub-area restricted funds is met from 

the District-wide funding of £82,345. This still leaves a shortfall of £5,504 hence it is 
proposed that this is taken from the £80,000 committed for the Housing 
Development Officer post as there will still be sufficient funding available for this, as 
on reviewing this funding only £74,496 is required 

 
4.3 From the £95,000 available in the Council’s Community Housing Fund, approval of 

the bid for £75,000 will leave a balance of £20,000.  
 
4.4 All of the funding bids are considered to represent value for money as, for minimal 

grant contributions, they will lever in significant investment to the District and 
provide much needed new affordable homes for local people.  

 
5.0 Legal Implications 
 
5.1 The legal basis for each commuted sum is detailed within section 106 agreements 

for each housing scheme. Each agreement has specific wording (which varies 
agreement to agreement) which allows for expenditure towards the cost of 
increasing affordable housing and, in some cases, improvement of affordable 
housing.  

 
5.2 The Council’s Solicitor has been consulted as to whether the proposed permanent 

pitches for gypsy and travellers are classed as affordable housing and has decided 
that they are as they meet the national definition for affordable housing. Homes 
England also consider them to be affordable housing and are providing funding.     

 
6.0 Equality/Diversity Issues 
 
6.1 The proposed new homes meet a wide range of needs including disabled people, 

homeless households, rural households and gypsy and travellers.  
  
7.0 Recommendations 
 
7.1 It is recommended that Cabinet -: 
 

(1) agree the expenditure proposals relating to commuted sums (affordable 
housing) of £477,250 as shown at 4.1 of the report; 
 

Page 4



(2) reduce the commuted sums funds committed for the Housing Development 
Officer post by £5,504 to cover the full costs of the bids for commuted sums 
(affordable housing) funding as shown at 4.2 of the report; and 
 

(3) agree the £75,000 expenditure relating to the Community Housing Fund as 
shown at 1.3.2 of the report. 

 
  
 
Helen Kemp 
Director of Economy and Planning 
 
 
Background papers: Cabinet report ‘Rural Housing Enablers Programme’ dated 10 

March 2020. 
 Chief Executive report ‘Commuted Sums (Affordable Housing) 

Expenditure’ dated 2 June 2020. 
 Community Housing Fund Grant Policy 2017. 
 
Author ref: TW 
 
Contact: Tony Whittaker 
  Housing Services Manager 
  01609 767176 
 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Hambleton District Council 
 
Report To: Cabinet 
 
Date: 5 October 2020 
 
Subject: Public Open Space, Sport and Recreation Action Plan – 

Rudby  
 
Portfolio Holder: Leisure 
 Councillor Mrs B S Fortune   
  
Wards Affected: Hutton Rudby Ward 
 

 
1.0 Purpose and Background     
 
1.1 The Council’s policy is to consider and where appropriate endorse Public Open 

Space, Sport and Recreation Action Plans to provide a more strategic and efficient 
process for allocating future Section 106 monies (see Annex A) for public open 
space, sport or recreation.     

 
1.2 The purpose of this report is to endorse the refreshed Public Open Space, Sport 

and Recreation Action Plan for the Rudby Parish.  
 
1.3 During the transition period between Section 106 fund allocations for public open 

space and the implementation of the Community Infrastructure Levy, action plans 
will continue to be submitted. They will inform the allocation of remaining Section 
106 developer contributions and help to identify community priorities for open 
space, sport and recreation that can also be shared with Parish Councils to inform 
forward plans for spending CIL contributions that they receive.   

  
1.4 To ensure that each Action Plan project can be assessed against the eligibility 

criteria as stated in the Open Space, Sport and Recreation Supplementary Planning 
Document adopted on 11 February 2011 it must: 

 
 Provide details of the public open space, sport and recreation project 
 Have given consideration to all public open space, sport and recreation 

projects that are included in a local Community or Parish Plan (if available)  
 Include details of any consultation with community groups that manage public 

open space, sport or recreation facilities that has helped identify future need 
 Refer to any recommendations that have been identified in the Council’s 

Open Space, Playing Pitches and Sports Facilities strategies 
 Have support from the Elected Members for the parish concerned 
 Be signed off by the Director for Leisure and Communities  

 
1.5 A copy of the Action Plan detailed in 1.2 is available at Annex B. 
 
 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



2.0 Link to Council Priorities 
 
2.1 The project listed in the Action Plan links primarily to the enhancing health and 

wellbeing priority of the Council but will also help deliver outcomes under the caring 
for the environment and providing a special place to live priorities. 

 
3.0 Risk Assessment  
 
3.1 There are no significant risks associated with the report recommendation.   
 
4.0 Financial Implications 
 
4.1 The main method of delivery of Section 106 allocations is to passport external 

funding from developers to community groups.  Funds will not be committed or 
released to organisations until the Council has received the monies from the 
developer. 

 
4.2 Action Plans are revised as projects are developed or completed to ensure that that 

the projects are still relevant and viable.  If there are changes to the plan they will be 
re-submitted to Cabinet for approval.   

 
5.0 Legal Implications 
 
5.1 There is a legal responsibility upon the Council to ensure this funding is used in a 

way consistent with the individual Section 106 Agreements.  The terms and 
conditions of the offer ensure that third party organisations meet their legal 
obligations of the award.   

 
6.0 Equality/Diversity Issues 
 
6.1 Equality and diversity issues have been considered however there are no issues 

associated with this report. 
 
7.0 Recommendation  
 
7.1 That Cabinet approves that the Public Open Space, Sport and Recreation Action for 

Rudby Parish. 
  
 
Steven Lister  
Director for Leisure and Communities  
 
 
Background papers: Hambleton Local Development Framework – Open Space, 

Sport and Recreation Supplementary Planning Document 
 
Author ref: LW 
Contact: Lisa Wilson  
  Service Manager (Communities) 
  01609 767149

ANNEX A 

ANNEX A 

Page 8



 
 
 

Signed off by the Director for Leisure and Communities 

Action Plan schemes approved 

Yes No 

Individual Action Plan projects are checked by the Communities team to ensure that the projects Public Open 
Space, Sport and Recreation SPD criteria, strategic priorities and appear to offer value for money 

Communities Team to support Town 
/ Parish Council / community groups 

to reconsider and re-submit Area 
Action Plan if appropriate 

 
Section 106 monies secured for strategic public open, sport and 
recreation schemes can be allocated to each scheme up to the value 
specified in the Sub Area Action Plan.   

 

Section 106 monies secured for off-site public open 
space, sport and recreation from a Local Plan allocation 
site can be allocated to each scheme(s) in the Sub Area 
Action Plan that is appropriate to that site, in priority 
order, up to the values specified 
 

Section 106 monies secured for off-site public 
open space, sport and recreation from windfall 
sites can be allocated to each scheme(s) in the 
Sub Area Action Plan that is appropriate to that 
site, in priority order 
 

Once agreed thresholds have been reached or priorities change the action plan needs refreshing and re-submitting to Cabinet.   

An individual Public Open Space, Sport and Recreation Sub Area 
Action Plan is submitted to Communities by a Town/ Parish 

Council or community group that manages a public open space, 
sport or recreation facility 

Action Plan presented to Cabinet for approval 

Process for approving Sub Area Action Plan 
and Section 106 thresholds for Public Open 
Space, Sport and Recreation schemes 

ANNEX A 

P
age 9



 
 

 

 
 
 

PUBLIC OPEN SPACE, SPORT AND RECREATION ACTION PLAN - RUDBY 
  

 
 

What POS / Sport / Recreation 

facilities do you have already? 

Managing 

organisation and 

contact details 

Future actions How do you know there is 

a need for this project? 

Estimated 

cost (£) 

Community 

Priority 

(1 = highest 
priority) 

Outside sport and recreation area Rudby Parish Council 

Street furniture to improve 

accessibility and health and safety 
for the sports area. 

Feedback from the 

community. 
£3,700.00 1 

 
 
 

ANNEX B 

P
age 10


	Agenda
	3 Affordable Housing Funding
	4 Public Open Space, Sport and Recreation Action Plans

